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Biographical Note

Brian Rines was born on August 30, 1941 in GardiNkine to Fred and Catherine Rines. Fred
Rines was the postmaster in Gardiner and also wlarkeMuskie’s gubernatorial campaigns.
Catherine Rines served as social secretary for Nlaiskie from 1955 to 1958. Rines became
involved with politics at an early age from his @ats’ interaction with political figures, and

from the influence of professors at Bowdoin Collglgigalma mater. Rines is an active
Democrat and was elected mayor of Gardiner in 1992.
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Transcript

Jeremy Robitaille:  We are here at the office of Brian Rines in AstguMaine on July 12th,
2001, and interviewing is Jeremy Robitaille. MRines, to start out could you please for the
record state your name and spell it?

Brian Rines: My name is Brian Rines, and my last name islegd®-I-N-E-S.

JR: Thank you very much. And what is your date plagte of birth?

BR: [ was born in Gardiner [Maine] on August 30tB41.

JR: And what are your parents' names?

BR: My father's name is Fred, my mother's nameath&rine, both Rines.

JR: And where are they from originally?

BR: My father was born in Gardiner, and my mothasworn in Leeds, but actually grew up
in Nova Scotia.

JR: Okay, and what were their occupations?

BR: My father was a postal career employee anditeted his employment, retired from the
post office as the postmaster in Gardiner havirgnspbout forty years or so with the postal

service. And my mother has been a social secratalgne Muskie, and has a degree in music
education | think, and then was, probably spenttwgears as a music, roving music educator



with the school district that included Richmondcliield, Wales, all those little towns kind of
southwest of Gardiner.

JR: Okay.
BR: And she's also retired now.

JR: Okay, tell me about your mother's involvemerthwane Muskie, when did she serve as
her social secretary?

BR: [ believe '54 to '58, whenever Ed got electedegnor, Jane, my mother interviewed for
the job, was immediately hired in the Blaine Hoasd served in the Blaine House all the time
that he was governor, and | think those were tlaesye

JR: And what were her major responsibilities asa®ecretary for Jane Muskie?

BR: [Idon'tthink I really know accurately, but yhieave a tea a day and they have various
dignitaries who, probably was less, more casual than it is today but various dignitaries show
up and they've got to put on a particular soc@hfrand atmosphere and it was my mother's job
to make sure, as | understood it, it was my matheb to make sure that it happened the way it
was supposed to and people were, went home thimkaady of the Blaine House and the
Muskies.

JR: And do you know of like, of what contact shelath Ed Muskie?

BR: My presumption is that it was daily. | mealne svas in the Blaine House, they lived in
the Blaine House, at least a couple of the kidswieere as school age kids then, and they, and
my mother's office was in the Blaine House. Edrapsal out of the Blaine House, unlike some
of our recent governors, and it's my understanthege was at least routine contact if not daily
how-are-you-doing social contact.

JR: And, did you get a sense, like, perhaps maieestories she told or anecdotes of like, of
say like her impressions of Ed Muskie or other peeoygho were there at the time, like maybe
legislators or maybe some of these dignitariesdhate to the Blaine House?

BR: | know that she was initially somewhat humhbgctheir presence, and soon came to
realize that they were just other people like hike, she, and as time passed | think got very
comfortable with the idea of doing that job andngeivith those people. My personal mentor, if
you will, at Bowdoin College, or the faculty memitkat | felt closest to and probably inspired
me more than anybody else, or as much as anybedywas a guy hamed Paul Hazelton, and
Paul was one of the kind of kitchen cabinet adgsdfrank Coffin was somebody that | knew
casually then and he was, or my parents knew asdlfifteen-year-old, sixteen, seventeen-
year-old, certainly knew him and worked casuallyis campaigns then and later. And | know
she talked, always talked of him positively.

| know at one point in time we were cleaned oubwf house with the idea that Adlai Stevenson



might be coming in for some sort of conference, latioin't even know if it was, how quiet it

was, but it turned out that either he didn't apedre went some-, they found some other
accommodations for him. But he was, they were gtarhave this seemingly quiet political
conference and they wanted to be off campus artdvidman easy way to do it. And as | tell

that story | think it may have even been, my famoilyns a house at Pemaquid, it may have even
been they were going to go down to the ocean himude that but, that's a pretty wobbly story.

JR: Okay, what particular campaigns of Frank Cddfolid you work on?

BR: Too long to remember. | mean I've never, marbinvolved in a congressional campaign
since | was about fourteen years old. And at &ypeemateur, pretty ordinary level, I've gotten
more sophisticated, more involved as I've gotteleglbut then | remember going to county fairs
and saying would you like to meet the next govewfdviaine, here's Maynard Dolloff, you

know, and we'd grab people and carry them overagrdrd and get him to shake hands, or we'd
carry over Frank Coffin at, again, county fairgljd a county fair circuit when | was in high
school and college introducing people to the caatésl And then | was a very low level, very
ordinary (nintelligible word).

JR: What are your impressions of, or what can wunte about Paul Hazelton?

BR: Paul was just a nice man. He was a very, g man who was an esteemed faculty
member at Bowdoin, and he was a graduate of thegsnlwent off to war, | believe, came back
to Bowdoin, founded and, | think he was the ongffsthember, but | might be wrong, in the so-
called department of education and he taught saimieh | guess today would be called social
science courses that kind of evolved around thesdtural, political, psychological aspects of
education.

We certainly had a department of sociology and gowent and we had those and Paul was off
there by himself. At one time, maybe even thenys the only full professor who only had a
master's degree. | think he was held in very nggfard by his colleagues, | think he was a
scholarly guy, but he also was the kind of guy wiwald sit down and have a beer or a cup of
coffee with you.

And he was a little bit unique in that | had arenesst even then, which | followed by going to,
we had a state hospital for mentally retarded kisd this is another, Ed Muskie is involved in
the second part of this story,- but when | gradiidtem Bowdoin | was supposed to go in the
Peace Corps. And when | took my physical aboutjslesbout two weeks before my graduation,
| flunked my physical because of a skiing injuryotee of my knees and the fact that I'm
functionally literally blind | guess you'd say noivl don't have my glasses. And they were
going to send me, | had been assigned to somewh&waombia, | think they even told me
where | was going, some God-, it certainly wasog&a, it was out in the middle of nowhere.
And this was, what, forty-five years ago, there waen then civil war raging there. And so they
turned me down, and so | went to Paul and | wesbtoe other people and they immediately
greased me this job at Pineland as a very junichdogist assistant. And so that was long
before, well | started my doctorate the next year.



But I, and Paul had a son who was clearly impairegyer knew him clinically or
professionally, but he was obviously impaired aad heen kind of adopted by the college and
even by the community as, and | don't remembenduise any more even, as a guy who was a,
just goofy and not very smart but pleasant andgmtadble and we'd, you'd give him a buck and
he'd go get your pizza, or if you've left some ®bk'd go get them for you, and kind of hung
around the edges of the campus and went to hockegeg with his mother and father, and Ruth
was a very gracious woman. And they were justyeate people. And Paul | think had some
affection for me after | graduated, because | stage¢ouch with him until his death a couple of
years ago. But | continued both in clinical psylolgy but also had a special interest in mental
retardation for many years. | was hadiairftelligible phrase) fellowship in mental retardation
and worked in that area until | drifted out of When they, by the time | got back to Maine
they'd closed, were starting, they closed the gfaPineland that I'd worked in so | never went
back there, and ended up doing what I'm doing now.

But, so we had a quasi-professional relationsBipt Paul really was the guy who along with
another professor there who didn't have anythimdptavith Ed Muskie other than he was an
incredibly solid Democrat, | know this is a bitafeach, but he kind of taught me how to think
and forced me to put some rigidity to what | wasdand how | was acting and how | was
writing. And that's turned out to be real impottemmme. | mean, I've had three or four men in
my life who've done that academically, but Paul tiesfirst one who kind of said, you seem
real bright, you also seem real scattered, heiest you need to do.

JR: And who was that other professor that you vediteding to?

BR: A guy named Dodge Burnalton, was a psycholagisi, somebody told me that
Governor King lives in the house that Dodge uséeld/&in, but don't quote me on that. He lived
right off campus, as did Paul. No, Paul lived op$ham then.

JR: You mentioned that Paul Hazelton worked for Medike in the, probably the executive
council. Do you know in what capacity?

BR: No, | don't even know if he was appointed, lnseawve did, probably did have the
governor's council then. Maybe he was in thatt tBere were half a dozen men | believe,
mostly men probably then, who, and | know they atedur house in Gardiner a couple of times,
or may-, at the ocean a couple of times for coakacartd | remember Frank, | remember Paul, |
remember the Lee guy who sells cars in Lewiston.

JR: Shep Lee?

BR: Shep Lee, but | didn't, never got to know hibon might have been, Nicoll might have
even been involved then. But there were a hatized men who | would just call the kitchen
cabinet, who were bright academic, or bright bussnmaen who were outside of politics that, if
you're a good politician you've got someone aroxmdcan talk to, or a leader. You know, they
aren't in a hierarchy and if you want a real waikelv or a different view you go to them. And |
think that's some of them, and undoubtedly Ed hathtscattered all over the state. But...



JR: So, sort of like an unofficial advisor.

BR: |think so, | think so. | mean, | know thak @l us have people we turn to for advice, and |
suspect that if you're a governor or a senator thley on a special, takes on a special cache and
importance to have those people | think. And Read the one that | knew best, and as | said, |
fronted as an advance, | wasn’t even the advance asaglunky working with an advance man
for Frank Coffin. He went to Congress a couplémes and then, as you may know now he's
the senior judge in this circuit on the appealst@and is revered by the Bar for his wisdom and
ability to get, to take care of business. Everybsiill talks of him with absolute reverence.
Should have been on the Supreme Court and didrithees, that kind of thing.

JR: Okay, backtracking a little. Was your fatheakinvolved in politics, and if so in what
capacity?

BR: My father was involved as a city council memaed the school board member, and as a
federal employee under what was, the rules theybhall, he could not get involved in partisan
politics formally. But he did do some, he's a mathard and, you know, he's the kind of guy
you give him four, I don't know if he could do aday, but three three-digit numbers and tell him
to multiply them, and in the old mechanical caltoalays, adding machine days, you know,
you came and pull a crank and the piece of papetdradvance, my father could do those sums
in his head faster than at least mechanical catmgl@ould. And he was an accountant by
professional training. And he had some sort af iolthe background on election night where
today you have sopholigists who have got a datalvdakesvery voting ward in Maine and every
single polling station and the counts, and thegiwang exit polling and everything else, and in
those days | think Dad kind of looked at numbes laglped people figure out, these are the
twenty-five important wards we need to look at, &métind of sit around on election night,

break down the numbers and hand them to somebatiihay say, “Gee, we're really doing well
in ward seven in Lewiston, boy, that's a good 8ignd my father would figure out the

statistics and tell people what it meant. Butaiswery unofficial and | think very much behind
the scenes because of his job. But he certaistjiled in my brother and I, he was probably that
same generation that Muskie was, of we took somethut of the pot and one of the ways to put
it back is community service. | think if he hadcebhea businessman as opposed to being a federal
civil servant he might have run for the legislaturecause he certainly, with the Muskie position
and his, now at the same time he was on the ciipaband school board in Gardiner, all of our
table conversations at night and chats always vedohround government and politics. And
certainly Ed Muskie as the first successful Dembierany of our lives inspired that.

JR: What were his views on Muskie?

BR: Well, I think everybody, well probably everyhyodidn't, but | think everybody revered
the guy, | mean as a person. He was, turned stermyupside down with his force of
personality and his leadership, and his abilitwtwk the system to both a partisan and a public
advantage and | think that, at least in my houskhot everybody | knew, that was the grounds
for superior, supreme accolades for wonderful lestdp. And | know that my father had
another scam going as a postmaster, that befogotteoffice changed, senators and
congressmen and members used to track how lorgca pf mail took to go from Washington to



Gardiner, or Portland to Gardiner. And Senator Rigvould, or | remember specifically
Senator Smith, | don't remember as much for Muskie] know Smith did the same thing,
would call the postmaster and say, “There's a paoeail coming to you, open that mail and
toss that letter that's addressed to me back ibitheAnd then you can get it, and tell me when
you got it, write it down and send that to me.” t8ey were kind of keeping an eye on two
things: how fast the local post offices respondexdi then they would sometimes ask for us to
send, us being local people, to send mail to thetdnsae how fast we responded to them.

My parents are literally as we speak moving ouhdf house they've lived in for sixty years and
so they're finding all sorts of stuff, and the atday my father came over and slapped a manila
envelope down on my kitchen table, literally, thats correspondence he had had with Ed
Muskie in 1963 that involved me. He said, “I thbtgou might be interested in this.” And
when | flunked out of the Peace Corps, there wevbgbly ten letters went back and forth
between, because the Bowdoin physician said, “Nblpm. Sure, he's got a funny knee but big
deal, he was able to play intramural athletics, lacettified him, if he'd been good enough I'd
certify him to play regular stuff.” And my familyhysician said, | don't know, seemingly said
the same thing, | haven't seen their documentanlguather made reference to them and
Senator Muskie made reference to them. And soatief's writing Muskie and saying, “Could
you figure out what's going on here, we don't ustderd. Certainly if this is going to be a
dangerous assignment we don't want Brian therepiiotite other hand, what happened?” And
so there were these three or four letters from e&them went back and forth. There were a lot
of letters, my father was playing postmaster agauh was talking about some correspondence
they had about mail and mail speed, and made sef@ence to that in a paragraph. And then
there was yet another letter in which my fathdaiking about his disappointment that Ed
Muskie's staff was not responding to some consttgieoncern as fast as my father, you know,
basically said, “Look, the post office is doingji$ getting stuff back and forth. What's going
on with your staff, how come they haven't answehéziperson's concerns?” And then there,
and there was another letter came back from Edk aglzing about me but in the last paragraph
he said, “Thank you for your concern about thisotesue, I'm sure, | want to assure you I'm
taking care of it,” and, “Please be careful to se@s your, our constituents, that this won't
happen again.”

And then there was another letter where my mothietanand she was seemingly annoyed that a
letter had been signed by an auto pen. And | kin@y were in existence because we had gone
to Washington and gotten into the office somewlage seen the gizmo then, which was an
incredibly complicated device that ran off some saBut Ed had written back to her and said,
“In spite of the tone of that letter, there is &gbility that this letter was in fact automatigall
generated and please be assured that | read themealthough | may not personally sign

them,” or words to that effect.

And so they had that kind of colloquy, and as mkhabout that auto pen device, | had unique
opportunity on two occasions, one of them to changeersonal history, and another one,
American history. In the spring of 1959 I'm gratitug from high school, and we stayed at the
Muskie house wherever they were living, we went ddkere. My, | believe my, both my
parents, my brother and myself, but | don't knoat #wverybody, | think everybody must have
been. Anyway, we stayed at the Muskie house wieeliéwas, and one day we were driving



somewhere, and I'm a relative pick-em-up shit kickem Maine in 1959, | know nothing, and
there’s no interstates in Maine that’s nothing.dAmearly get us all killed merging into some
traffic in downtown Washington, or coming in frolmetsuburbs or something. And | remember
Ed's, | remember Senator Muskie's famous profamitytemper tantrum-ness bubbling up for a
minute as he excoriated me for this bone head, yalytryin’-to-get-us-all-killed statement.

And it was over in thirty seconds.

Then in 197-, | hated Nixon and still hate Nixorttwa passion | can't explain or understand.
But part of it is, | missed the enemies list byfibucks. Because part of the enemies list is that
you had a cap on federal spending and if you exagbdtht cap you were reported to the
equivalent of the federal elections commissiodon't know what it is any more. | was a
resident at a medical, at a big hospital in Chicagen Muskie was getting ready to run for
president. And | was sending him fifty bucks a mhoand I, my recollection is that the cap was
five hundred dollars when they went to the elecioommission, it might have been two-fifty,
but whatever it was | stopped fifty dollars shdrtle cap or I'd have been on the Nixon enemies
list! Because part of it was they took the peadplthe United States who had donated to Ed
Muskie's campaign. We were part of that group tiney were going to, God knows what they
would have done to us, | mean, they wouldn't haareedanything to us. But, so Ed might have
touched my life, Senator Muskie might have touctied in my life because, | mean, my
political career might have been enhanced by baimgmber of Nixon's hated whatever that
number was. But | didn't hate Nixon because df thaean.

JR: Now, this list, was this like one of the, comiout...

BR: Itwas part, it was a big part of the Watergatandal, and it was just part of the venom
and vendetta that Nixon always had about everyttiingwas never not suffused with some sort
irrelevant paranoia. And Muskie came out of tf8ec@mpaign as a very, very legitimate
candidate for president. And while we didn't htéhwe perpetual campaign then, | don't think
there was ever a period between '68 and '72 tleayleody in Maine thought Ed Muskie would
be the next president of the United States.

And then another personal recollection that mydathid on me, that Muskie was a brilliant, the
technical term might be like sotographer. He knewvds better than anybody I've ever listened
to. And my father used to encourage me and myhbrdb develop our vocabulary so that, why
use nine words when one will do. He liked Sen&taskie, because apparently there never was
a time when Senator Muskie did not, he didn't fapparently, and | don't know this because |
wasn't paying attention, never dumbed things dowerer felt the need to be artificially humble.
And that, and alternatively was not superfluousféicious in his use of language. | mean, he
didn't use sethquindaily or some fancy word likat it didn't fit and wasn't appropriate. And
my guess is he probably used it more in writtem tinethe spoken language, but I know that's
something, and | use that same example with my. kidise can learn in the English speaking
world learn the language and be like Senator Muskie

And certainly that's never left me: “Why use ninerds when one will do?” If my father said
that to me once, he said it to me three hundreegiwhile we were teenagers and college
students, and that was our model. And | actuallytdbelieve, with one exception, that | have



ever read a piece of Senator Muskie's writingswhen he was secretary of state, when are we
talking about now, I think it was the Joe Brenniast igubernatorial campaign.

JR: That sounds about right.

BR: We had a convention in Bangor and Phil Mewdls running against Brennan in the
primaries. But the big event was that sometimiaénmiddle of the afternoon somebody stood
up and said, we have an incredibly special tr&anator Muskie, Secretary of State Muskie, is
coming back from somewhere, at least from Europe. @lane is going to, was scheduled to
refuel at Dow Air Force Base. “He has agreed,” ahd knows, maybe this is all cooked up
months in advance but, “He has agreed to comeestadghvention, leave the plane, come over
and speak to us.” Now seemingly, this was failyeatemporaneous or unplanned stop, and for
what seemed like, and | know it was at least fdiktg-minutes, he spoke in a logical, rational,
linear, emotional, political fashion about the fgrepolicy of the United States and the impact it
had on the state of Maine, each of its people,handlucky we were to be Americans, that kind
of speech. Extemporaneously without going, umwiligt am | going to say next kind of stuff.

It was, | mean that's how, what an orator doesd Aemember then thinking about my father's
exhortation about language, and that may have theefirst time as an adult, because by then
I'm thirty-five years old or something, of I'm réahg what an incredible guy this is. This guy
that | used to wash cars for, who I tried to killce, etcetera, here | was and he was up there
doing his thing.

Libby Mitchell, who is a Maine politician who sadlye're, seemingly not going to be able to
find a place for her due to time and chance, sderhave that same ability. Libby can stand up
and orate with just stunning clarity and grab yeeart and your mind, and Ed certainly did that
that day, it was phenomenal. We'd have carrieddutron our shoulders, could have lugged
him right out of the room, every one of us.

And it was phenomenal, too, because we had, | ooty how long we, we certainly didn't
have pillars in the United States Senate. Likes@&vbad a couple in the last couple of terms but,
| mean go back to American history, 1870s, to tha bf the century, that previous century,
Maine was, when Republicans in the northeast rarcdintry, we had those kind of people all
the time in Washington and so he was one of ous gaywho had seized it and was leading our
country in incredibly important and diverse rolésverybody, that was really an incredibly
touching element for hundreds of us, you know, laoat aside for a few minutes the partisan
politics of how lucky we were to have somebody k. And |, George Mitchell is one of my
personal heroes and | got to know George moderatelywas an officer, chief officer of the
state association. We did a lot of lobbying in Wagton, | spent a lot of time the year | was
chairman of the Maine Hospital Association. | wen¥Washington about once a month, and
always met with Senator Mitchell. He had somehofe same skills, and | think he may have
been a harder nosed, harder assed politician plaatisan politician than Ed Muskie was.

But | read something recently about Muskie's, Meah name was not casually earned, that to
get his environmental movement, Earth Day movenstatied that there was some blood on
some floors and back rooms to do that, which | habdought much about. But clearly he
overturned a way that we looked at ourselves and¢@mmunities, and our industry and our



people, and you do not do things like that eastigause a lot of pressure groups were not at all
interested I'm sure in what he had to say. Inlfaemember when we had the so-called
environmental movement start here in Maine, | nmaste been a college student. No, my first
year of graduate school at the University of Maieeause it was 1964 that Senator Muskie was
senator, that movement was going on. And | remenfiaee was a debate at the library at the
university, and I'm certain he wasn't there, hust remember some Maine politician basically
saying he has shown us the way and we either loadedide whether we're going to allow
ourselves to be an industrial cesspool of the Westerld, or we're going to change things and
maintain the purity and sanctity of our environmaevtile keeping jobs, and it is possible and
we must do it, and Senator Muskie said we must.démd therefore that happened, you know,
that drove a whole generation of people. It didés, | presume, people who are interested in the
environmental, so-called environmental movement.

And | remember the guy, he's a prominent bank&vaterville and, he's probably retired now,
but he was the son of the guy who ran the Natur&k BaBangor who made that statement at
that time. And | remember a light bulb going onmig head that said, “Yeah, why do the rivers
all have to be dirty when they can be clean?” Ade can still run paper mills,” and “what
are they talking about?”

| am very fortunate to own a house literally on tia@ks of the Kennebec River. Been there for
twenty-five years, and the reason | bought thaskomas, when | bought it in 74, the following
year the Clean Water standards were going to goeffiéct. And when | was a youngster and
you fell in the Kennebec River in Gardiner, thaffithing they did was take you to the hospital,
Gardiner General Hospital in those days, and ydwadgphoid shot and whatever they gave you
because, you know, it was just presumed that ttee was unsafe to be in and anybody who
went in the river was likely to get some deadlyedse. And theliterally took you down to

your doctor and you got a whole bunch of shotsd An'75, it was '74 when we actually bought
the house, maybe it was '73, we knew that the thiag coming. And | have a document in my
house signed by another one of Ed's people, Selttskie's people, who, | can't think of the
guy's, he was the first commissioner of environrakeptotection here in Maine, and we had a
straight pipe into the river which meant you flusly@ur toilet and it ended up in the Kennebec
River, and we had a discharge permit that | fraamedi put up in my bathroom that basically
says, you can do this until this day, and on tlagtybu must no longer do that, and the city of
Gardiner in the meantime got a large federal gabuild a sewer treatment plant. So that, you
want to come to my house some warm summer afterandrunless there has been some strange
occurrence, the Kennebec River is safe to swimAind boating and fishing and recreate in,
whatever you want to do. And that just wasn'tl Biacy who is a neighbor of mine talks about
painting his house white on the very day that sepapll in Gardiner, there were three of them
in Gardiner when | was a kid, three of them, whegitused the term cleaned their tanks or
flushed their tanks, | don't remember which it wag, whatever it was they released all these
chemicals into the air and it used casually todiked the smell of money, but whatever that
chemical was it turned Bill's freshly painted whiteuse a yellowish-brownish hue. Chemical
reaction, you know, hitting on fresh paint.

JR:  Wow.



BR: Yeah, you betcha. That won't happen any neoré,Ed, Senator Muskie was one of the
people who said we can have clean air, clean walesan streets and still have jobs, and that's
basically right. | guess we're still fighting owdetails in the edges but. He probably made a

deal with Senator Byrd and a couple other peopteiatn get cold for a while, but we’re going

to catch up with those guys one of these days, too.

JR: All right, what can you tell me about growing i Gardiner, like how it was politically,
socially, economically, and how it's changed oweryears?

BR: Seemed like a nice place to grow up. | waartjepart of the middle class, my parents
were, never wanted anything, always had, | meaoesainly weren't affluent but we weren't
poor. And | know there were people who referredg¢@ wealthy. | think it probably was rare

in 1954 or so to be, or '55, to be a two-car farbggause in '47 most families didn't even have a
car. We had two by the time my mother went to wiorkSenator Muskie, or right after she
went. Probably it was a commuting vehicle for her.

| just remember an idyllic, wonderful growing uply father was, my great grandfather, my
grandfather, and my father were all city councihmbers involved in city government, they were
all actively involved in a middle-of-the-road Bagitchurch as leaders of that church. My father
was moderator of the annual meeting for | thinkjuse retired after fifty or six-, some ungodly
period of time. My grandmother was a person whigld piano lessons in her home, my mother
was a professional musician before she hooked tipMiiskie so there was a lot of music
around. And my grandmother was very politicallyivas but as a Republican.

JR: What was her name?

BR: Ruth Rines. She wasn't a partisan Republsfamwas just politically active and clearly
was a Republican and everybody knew it. But shehimgs like she was state boss of the DAR
and the Daughters of the Colonial War and the Hogtsg and the Women's Christian
Temperance Union and all those gangs, my grandmuoiae a member, a state leader of in her
fifties and sixties. So in some sense | grew ugh wiclear political commitment to taking care
of business and came home. My brother's beereats&n in a community near here -

JR: What's his name?

BR: His given name is Kincaid, and his street n&sudy Rines. But, and I've been
involved in city government in one way or anothartiventy-five years, and some of that is,
undoubtedly some portion of that is the kind of MasMitchell model of you take something
out of the pot and you put something back. It&llof my hobby. Some people collect stamps
and go kayaking where I'm collecting community gowveent. So | don't remember a lot about
it. It was a really nice place to grow up. Docgts, | remember we’d play city common, city
police.

JR: Allright. Through your many years of politigavolvement, what sense do you have of
how the political atmosphere in Gardiner has chdnged perhaps even Maine, too, in all your
years of involvement?



BR: Certainly Gardiner has changed in that there avame recently where there were only
two out of eight of us on the city council and thayor elected at large, and there are seven city
council members, there were only two of us who viey town, and like five of us, four of us
were from away. That never would have happenggydars ago, | mean it was a genera-, my
grandfather, my great grandfather, my father, kived of thing. | don't have any doubt there
were also doves who got elected city councilohmforties, fifties and sixties, but, and | think |

| don't know whether | learned this because | was @f the hippie movement, or whether |
learned some of this because of Ed Muskie, bugdrty believe and practice a form of politics
that says no secrets, no surprises, and try to &awepen, clear, direct and regular and honest no
bullshit relationship with the press. | believedk, some of that came from Paul Hazelton who
was, people are our friends, not our adversadesl if you mess up, you might as well admit it
and get on with business and figure out what yayoiag to do next. Got an error, got a
problem, fix it and get on. And if it's bad enouflken maybe you don't deserve to hold this job,
you know, if you're a true bonehead then maybesjmuldn't be doing this. And if you've got a
bonehead set of errors or a streak that says yau&petitive bonehead then maybe instead of
lying about it and trying to cover it up or whateypeople do, maybe you should get out. And
we've been lucky in that we haven't messed up andtwhenever we have we've, and that
certainly wasn't true when | joined the city coumeil980. Itis, | believe that it is firmly
ingrained right now with the gang | run with andyasmknows, let's hope that continues.

End of Sde A
SdeB

JR: Okay, you mentioned -

BR: And I suspect that his presence on the Mairaesmade it possible for there to be two-
party government, and two-party government clelamits secrets and surprises. And that
doesn't mean that there aren't, I'm certainly boyetlog Democrat as close to it as you can be,
except theynintelligible word). And I proclaim myself to be a yellow dog Demalgralthough
there have been occasions in my life where I'veaddlany eyes, bit my tongue, and voted for a
Republican. We didn’t have any of that choiceddong time in Maine, and we have it now,
and it forces us to run responsible people and®us to be a responsible political presence.
And he made that possible. And | think that weehbgen, obviously had people, but while
(name) was alive @nintelligible word) who say he didn’t live up to both his expectasian

mine, or yours perhaps, but an average student.

And I'm sure that, | tell people, | read tReston Globe every day because at least our local
newspaper didn’t have a lot of world news, thatéhmay be some corruption in Maine but
having people as him, as Billy Cohen, as Georgeéit, as Joe Brennan, even McKernan and
now King, we've had a level, John Reed, | mean'tbeyl real honest people who are setting a
tone that says we may have parties in rancor bwveveét have corruption and malfeasance. And
| think that, | spent what was it, five years ini€dgo | think, and five years in South Carolina
when | was away getting educated, and those sweign't the rules there, those surely weren't
the rules there. And I think here it is. | mebwould be just absolutely, | wonder what it would
do my head and my soul if | discovered that somgheak bribing a member of the planning



board that | appointed for some permits. And yeadrabout it every week in tigtobe.

Someone in Massachusetts, somebody's brother-imslgiving somebody some money so they
can move a boundary or want to do something tatagmething. 1 just can't imagine that kind
of thing happening in Maine and part of it is thiedkof leadership that people like Senator
Muskie, and Governor Muskie, provided. Those areicons and we're not going to tarnish
their integrity, it's part of you. And | think thd you're a young Republican in Maine you can
say the same kind of things about Margaret Chasth@mBilly Cohen, without any hesitation
at all that that's the kind of things they stooddnd they did.

JR: How about Olympia Snowe?

BR: Yeah, yeah. But, | mean, | don't know thatr@ya, well Olympia is a, | have a friendly
relationship with Olympia because her, the Snoweeinname was my cousin, Peter, she was
married to my cousin and he was killed umi6telligible word) in '73. But, so Olympia and |,

and my uncle is her foster father for all practjgatposes. | don't know that he has literally
adopted her, but he certainly has, the only pewdumhas, her parents died in her toddler years |
think, and then she married into my uncle's farailg my uncle is an incredibly warm,
gregarious, wonderful man. And when Peter diesipitay that Peter died, well it's the worse
thing in the world that Peter died, but you wilvalys be a member of our family. And he has, |
know that Olympia, when she goes for a winter iacan Florida stays with them, she and
Jock.

My daughters certainly hold her up as a model afething we can be. And I don't think that
that is solely the function of her being a memidahe family. Because we have family
reunions, we have parties, and Olympia shows ngadt we had one last Sunday and Olympia
was supposed to be there but something happenesharzhlled my mother and said, “I can't
come.” But I'm sure that Olympia has an impactrgndaughters, and lots of other young
women, that she doesn't necessarily have on meigeeee're kind of, we're literally peers by
age. And as | think about it, there probably s $ame age spread between my kids, my
youngest daughter turned twenty- one yesterdaliyeso there's, what, thirty years, thirty-four
years between her and Olympia, and that was prghlablspread between me and Senator
Muskie and me and Margaret Chase Smith, somewhehai range, | mean they clearly were
another generation advanced. And so Olympia, amlkmows, maybe Susan will do it, too, but
Olympia's been around since the late seventigmrisof the picture because she got appointed
and ran for Peter's seat and then when Billy rathi® Senate of course she ran for the House
and then, you know, danced their chairs.

JR: Okay. You mentioned for a time that you wevas it chairman of the Maine Hospital
Association?

BR: Yeah.

JR: And that you went to Washington, down to Wagton for a month. First, when did you
serve as chairman?

BR: 90, ‘91 | think, maybe it's '90, '92. Thathghy I'm wearing the gray hairs of history.



JR: And with your frequent trips to -

BR: No, no, I can tell you when it was. It hachtve been '92 because Billy Clinton had just
been elected president, and it was all the madaessnayhem of the Clinton health care plan.

JR: Okay, and what brought you down to Washingtooften, like, were you lobbying for
something, and -

BR: Well, I went down to represent a perspectivilafme’'s hospitals that we wanted our
elected representatives to hear because most &igspitMaine still get a preponderant amount
of their income from Medicare and Medicaid, andesteral regulations have a lot to do with
whether we go broke or not. And ultimately theyedmine what kind of health care my mother
and my next door neighbor get, because it's, Ideading with bureaucrats in Washington over
elected representatives, but, you, come back as#msumiles from there and you're still talking
about Gardiner-Augusta, Maine and General Mediealt€ and what kind of money we're

going to have and how we're going to get paidhat and how we're going to use it. And
somebody over at the hospital, if you went andetaiwith him, would tell you the general
Medicare rates are three feet tall and require,kymw, two porters to carry them from one

room to another. | mean, that is literally trduenean, | don't know if they're three feet taleyh
might be seven and they might be three and alhafthere's certainly a lot of papers that,
hospital billing, surgical and, all the procedunest just, the whole bureaucracy does not want to
govern what happens in hospitals. And we, of aaunrave hired the smartest people we can and
| try to get an edge and get a buck out of therhwleathink we deserve, and that was part of my
job was to go down and lead delegations of hospitatees, which | was so it, hospital leaders,
and make our plea. And somewhere along that tiemat®r Mitchell was on the finance
committee, which is important because they writedldare legislation, and then he was majority
leader, which made him king of the hill. He's anderful guy.

And | know | read all the time that he was an iddoéy effective partisan senator but | didn't see
that. | saw a guy who was advocating for Maine liaghe hospitals and trying to make the
system work.

JR: Okay, and in your involvement with that andesthke health care related institutions,
what sense did you have of how politics was affegtiike you mentioned this a little bit with
how Maine gets a lot of the money for Medicare Watlicaid, but what was your sense of how,
| guess maybe how it's changing in relation, Mameelation to the country and perhaps within
Maine itself?

BR: Well I don't think hospitals, hospitals dorkel regulation. Hospitals see regulations as a
governmental trick to control, a governmental dfforfurther control their, not just their purse
strings but their behavior, and generally seedka Democratic endeavor rather than a
Republican one. And it's inside and | was freqlyedown there two weeks, two or three weeks
ago and, again on a hospital gig, and I'm, ancetthée fifteen or so men and women and ['ll

still be the only Democrat. Because it's, you knitw big money, it's a billion dollar effort in
Maine, hospitals, it's big money and a lot of veoyverful pressure groups are involved and they



started, Tecno in 1988, '87, started to rigorouasiytrol the delivery of health care because those
of us in the hospital family don't want to do And since we don't want to police our own ethics
and control our own costs and control our own egfares, they're saying since we're the piper
we're going to call the tune.

And | belong to a relatively small group that sagiace they are the piper and since they are
calling the tune, and they don't like the tune, wlby't we write ourselves our own music and
see if we can't get them to adopt our tune rathaan theirs, instead of constantly saying you're
such a bad goddamn orchestra we hope you go akedis try to- but that's not effectively put.
It's hard to negotiate with cops and it's harddgatiate who are usually, cops who are far away
but I would certainly have advocated, it's harddy, | couldn't still do the, some of these
regulations could be avoided.

| was involved in the bottle drive, was that in 898And a good friend of mine was the chief
lobbyist and brain keeper for the bottle redentpe,émpty bottle redem-, he worked for the
bottlers and | remember, and you ought to interndiewaunce if you haven't.

JR: What was that again?

BR: Irv Faunce, F-A-U-N-C-E. And you can find himow because he's a member of the
board of commissioners of the Department of Envitental Protection. But Irv is a peer of
mine who's been involved in community politicsathng, and you know, he went to those guys
and it kind of taught me a lesson. If somebodynisrously trying to restrict your activities,
instead of standing up and fighting with them lé time, maybe you should advocate for what
you want and see if you can't find a middle grouAad that goes back to something Paul
Hazelton taught me, that if you want to get a medgllound the guy who goes to the meeting
with a written proposal is the guy who is likelygeevail if only, if you've got a written proposal
and you lay it down on the table, then at least yoark becomes a template for what gets done
as opposed to other ideas that are flying arolRides has written this down, let's see what it
says, rather than fourteen other ideas. And hksdithat from Paul, and there's no rocket science
in that, I'm sure that Bismark said the same tinvghundred years ago.

But anyway, Irv | know went to the bottle gang aadd, look, we're going to lose and we're
going to lose big and we ought to come up withal & returnable bottles. And I think he will
tell you they said, no way, and hospitals contitaumse big.

| mean, my mother is a living example. Ten yea@s, &welve years ago, she has a heart that's
going flippety-flop and she needs a new valve andlBdick who is the local cardiovascular
wizard says, you need a new valve, Katherine, gayoing to go to Maine Medical Center, we'll
do it on November twenty-first and you will be diseged and a year later you will be feeling
like new. Okay, doctor, revered god on the hillagW go. Last year my father, who is eighty-
five years old, has some funny symptoms and theyt teedo a job on his neck where they
remount his arteries, the carotid artery, they dones put in stents, but at least they enlarge the
arteries to make sure there's a continuing bloma tb the brain. And her response to that is
basically, and again, we've got an eighty-two y@dmwoman who looks at computers as kind of
interesting devices that you play games on, yowknehat are these things all about. And she



wants me to go to the Internet basically and sest Wban find about endarts, and endartectomy
is the name of this procedure. And, somebody mang lvritten about that, what are the
standards. | mean, and | knew there were and wehetAmerican College of Vascular
Surgeons, American College of Neurology and Neugesy, and sure, wizbanks all over the
world that said this is what you ought to do anesthare the procedures you ought to follow,
these are the outcomes and these are the kinadpfegpwho should do this to get these
outcomes. So | printed it off and | handed it to &ied she read it and said, what does this all
mean, so we went back over it again and | undetlgmnething, | wrote her a three-paragraph
summary. And she went to her doctor and asked bmegather pointed questions, well she
went to my father's doctor and asked him some ragbiated questions, which twelve years ago
never would have entered her mind. The technol@gyput my mother in a position where now
she's asking questions, and lots of other peoplasking questions, and | don't know where this
gets us to but hospitals still want to pretend tiralive got a bunch of sheep wandering in that
we're going to shear the way that we say they otagbé done. And many of, | meet with some
of the smartest, most articulate, highly paid exiges in this country when | go to these
meetings and they say that stuff, but | know th&athers are doing the same thing to them and
one of these days they're going to have to wakanajpsay, gee, this may not be the way it is.
But we haven't gotten there yet. “We knocked otaHj, well, we’ll knock off the next one,

don’t worry, boys.”

We still have twenty thousand more, twenty perceote hospital beds than we need in this
country, and in your home town, or at least in Lstam today they're crowing the fact that
Central Maine Medical Center is about to open ahwodred thousand square foot, nine million
dollar building that everybody knows we don't néedo open heart surgery in Lewiston. So
that people don't have to drive to God forbid Rordl and have their heart done. You know,
they'll drive down there for underwear and lasaginide Maine Mall, but they can't drive down
to have their heart done so we're going to piss/amancredible amount of money and energy
and whatever to satisfy Bill Young's ego, but satbe

JR: Who's Bill Young?

BR: He's the president of Central Maine Medical t€ewho wants this edifice to be the
edifice in this part of Maine. And hospitals ardinled by the president. His wife is mayor of
Lewiston, probably, of Auburn rather, and probdidg some real contacts with the senator, too,
because she was here during the Muskie years.rijutagy, that's an aside. | don't think Ed
Muskie would like what we're doing in Lewiston tgda

JR: No? As far as?

BR: We're pissing away some incredibly valuableueses in the second or third poorest state
in the country, a state with the highest, the lai@gel of Medicare reimbursement in the
country proportionally, and we're going to sperghaillion dollars before it's over to build a
facility to do procedures that are done very effety thirty-five miles away; maybe less.

JR: Yeabh, it definitely seemed like, from my invelment with some Democratic campaigns in
the election 2000 there really was a power plalikenstate legislators from Lewiston and



Auburn to exert force over, like, and show that/tteenot pawns of the Portland legislators.

BR: Yeah, yeahSctransit gloria and (nintelligible word) Young and fifty million dollars
worth. Those poor bastards in Washington County edres, you know. So what if they got a
little bit of typhus over there. Ten minutes argbt to get out of here.

JR: Okay, well then I just wanted to, kind of tka®u about your time as mayor in Gardiner
and just kind of like the major issues that you tmdeal with and a bunch of people that you've
worked with, things of that nature.

BR: I'm probably the best mayor they've had in ifgtime.
JR: What years did you serve?

BR: [I've been mayor since the Clinton-Rines yejise). | was elected in '92; | was not
impeached so I'm still mayor. | think this will bey fifth term. We're representative of a
thousand New England communities that had theléexitill, three paper mills, and a huge
furniture and large window manufacturing faciliag well as two shoe shops, one of which made
more of the standard black combat boot in WWII thag other factory in the United States. A
little fact about Gardiner, Maine. And with all thfat, today one paper mill exists employing
fifty people. And they do a wonderful job, andriéie a trash bag around here filled with white
paper that I'm going to dump in their recycling tonight. But Gardiner was a mill town, no
longer a mill town, and we, during the time I'veebhenayor we've gotten, with the assistance of
federal people and the courage of our, some seatpl@ and our own elected officials, a two and
a half million dollar grant to build a major sewrsre expansion and business park which we, |
think we've sold seventy-five percent of it. And've now gotten another two and a half million
dollars in state and federal grants to continudé wie downtown revitalization. Any decent
mayor would have made that happen. | think whetvie done is allow people a chance to feel
like they're part of the government, and fallemonsword a couple times of no secrets and no
surprises, and people forgave me. You just telithvhat's happening and this is why it is and
you ask for-. | remember a couple of years agoetmuy said, | think it's George Bernard
Shaw, “Why look around and look for all sorts ohgaicated explanations for things when
simple human frailty and stupidity will do.” Anddion’t know why- the paranoids, the paranoids
are always there, and | say, look, you know, yaulzgieve this or pull out, the simple answer is
| screwed up, here | am, you know. | mean, | satggesomething that didn't work, and it isn't
because of Irving Oil or 7 Eleven or whatever nhgiy was a bonehead that afternoon and in
retrospect it was a very dumb thing to do and hwikadn't done it. And people say, “Well
you're acting like a bonehead,” and | said, “Yeaiu're right,” | just said that. And, “Well, we
think that you really do stupid,” “You're rightdb stupid things.” And then after a while they
say, “Well,” | say, “you're right, | agree with yduNinety-five percent of what we do is okay,
but three to five percent of it, you know, we madene errors. And people are like that, you
know?

| don't know that | learned any of that from Edmuvidskie, and | don't know that there- and |
know there are scads of other people around wht déeorge Mitchell once came to us, and
I'm sure that Senator Muskie would have said tineesthing: “The hardest job in politics and



government in the United States is the local oheg¢ause, you know, | got to go to Shop 'n
Save, and | got a shopping list here somewheret foggo to Shop 'n Save tonight and buy some
stuff and there's likely to be a lot of constitieemt there. And some of them are likely to have
some opinions. And I'm not separated by a thousaite$ and | got an auto pen writer and
various other things, “Hey Rines, come here foriaute,” you know. Yesterday it was bushes
that were growing on the side of the road occludirggop sign, and | said, well, here's how we're
going to solve that. The city manager and me aneggto go over there some night with the
cutters and we'll cut those bushes back when ndbdabyking. We cut the bushes back last year
and DEP came down and slapped us around becauseima'coastal plain or resource
protection zone and we should have gotten a peamit\we should have jumped through some
DEP hoops before we cut down some really, realiginary, stupid, bushes. Maybe that's the
downside of an environmental movement of a regyagovernment, you know, it's really a

pain in the ass. | mean, we can't, every time waglsome snow in the river somebody comes
down and kicks us around and | said, “Jesus, yawkmwe're throwing the snow in the river and
we're forty miles from the ocean and it flushesengry day,” and it seems like a no-brainer to
me. And they say, “Yeah, but then there's cigaretitts and maybe condom wrappers and God
knows what else in that snow that somebody thremoouhe street, and that's going in the
ocean, too.” And you say, “Yeah, maybe you'rettighow about if we put up a fence and we'll
collect all the detritus and the snow will melt ahdt will go in the ocean.” “Well, actually we'd
rather you didn't do that because, you know, therrithe ocean's got a lot of salt in it, but we
don't know what'll happen if we put all this roadtsn.” And that's when | get up and leave the
f---ing round table saying, “Jesus, these peomgust -.” So we spent a hundred and, let's say a
hundred and fifty thousand dollars in the last foufive years developing alternative snow
dumps where it melts and the salt water goes davertihe aquifer anyway as opposed to going
to the Atlantic Ocean which is thirty-five miles aw This is my favorite pet peeve.

But, so this equality regulation that you have g¢aldvith, and if you lived in Utah or Arizona

the DEP would consist of the governor's sisteraiwn-and nine clerks and that would be the end
of it. And you drive through Utah and there ar@,) know, mining tailings that are forty stories
high and five miles long and you say, where ars¢ldEP and then you remember they don't
have any regulations. Every time some presidead to impose some federal ones they try to
shoot the federal marshals that show up. So,weei the northeast, got three hundred years of
government, got a lot of regulation and we havievowith it. But, | certainly learned it from

my parents, | think my parents belong to the saatiéigal philosophy that Senator Muskie did
that said you got to be open, real, and honesyauadlo that with people enough and they'll
actually trust their government and be proud ofay know. And the saddest thing is when you
have, Waterville's had a run of crooks as mayor twelast ten years. Ed's hometown even,
you know. I'm sure he would roll over in his grai/ke looked at some of those people who
were not dealing honestly with the public trust apen and directly.

And they always get caught, that's the part thettgoesn't make any sense to me. One of the
mayors in Waterville went down to, he was a proté@ged's even, went down to City Hall one
night when his son got arrested for drunk and disdy down in a Colby bar and, you know,
and screaming and hollering at the police aboutedirutality and how you're just arresting him
because he's my son and blah-blah-blah-blah-btehhare's this shit-faced kid who, you know,
should have been home in bed and was just drunklisodderly and should have been allowed



to sleep it off and bail him out and take him hoies they did with us at Bowdoin. Probably
still do in Brunswick. Maybe even do at that plgo& go occasionally. And, you know, instead
she goes down and two days later Mayor blanketgkadllareatening police, using her power
inappropriately, and she should have stayed horhedrand sent her brother-in-law down with
a hundred dollars to get the poor boob out of jeilhy people do that stuff and think that sooner
or later it won't get to the newspaper and be erfritnt page is beyond me, because it always
does.

JR: All right, well, you have to get going so iisgood place to stop.

BR: Yeah, | have to go to jail, see somebody wlutably doesn't even know who Ed Muskie
is.

JR: Allright. Well, thank you very much.
BR: Yeah, my treat.

End of Interview
moh286.int
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